
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES  
 
LEARNING AND SCHOOL EFFECTIVENESS  
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES  
 
DECISIONS   (Depending on the items on the Agenda) to be made by the Lead Cabinet Member 
for Learning and School Effectiveness, Councillor Bennett; and the Lead Cabinet Member for 
Children and Families, Councillor Tidy. 
 
The Lead Members will only attend if an item on the Agenda falls within their portfolio or if they are 
making decisions on behalf of each other.  
 
MONDAY, 20 APRIL 2015 AT 10.00 AM  
 
CC2, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Members on 9 March 2015  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 

 
3   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Lead Members consider to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 

 
4   Primary School age range changes - report by Director of Children's Services  (Pages 5 

- 8) 
 

5   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 10 April 2015 
 
Contact Hannah Matthews, 01273 335138 
 
Email: hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
CHILDREN’S SERVICES  
 
Learning and School Effectiveness  
Children and Families  
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness – 
Councillor Nick Bennett on Monday 9 March 2015 at County Hall, Lewes 

 
  

Councillor Tidy spoke on items 4 and 7 (see minutes 31 and 34) 
Councillors Field, Forward and Shuttleworth spoke on items 5 and 7 (see minutes 32 and 
34) 
Councillor Shuttleworth spoke on item 6 (see minute 33) 
 
28.  MINUTES  
 
28.1  The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 9 
February 2015.  
 
29. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
29.1 Councillor Field declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in item 5 as Chair of 
Battle and Langton Pre School Playgroup and item 7, as a family member is the business 
manager at a school for children with SEN which accepts placements from the County 
Council. Councillor Field did not consider these to be prejudicial.  
 
30. REPORTS  
 
30.1  A copy of the reports referred to below are contained in the minute book.  
 
31. PRIMARY SCHOOL RE-ORGANISATION IN CROWBOROUGH 
 
31.1  The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which 
sought approval to publish statutory notices in respect of a proposal to amalgamate 
Whitehill Infant School and Herne Junior School in Crowborough. Councillor Tidy spoke in 
support of the proposal as a local member.  
 
DECISION 
 
31.2  RESOLVED to (1) authorise the publication of statutory notices in respect of a 
proposal to amalgamate Whitehill Infant School and Herne Junior School in Crowborough 
with effect from 1 September 2015; and 

      (2) delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to 
amend the proposals prior to their publication if required.  

 
Reasons  
 
31.3 The Council and the governing body believe that a change to the current 
organisation of Whitehill Infant School and Herne Junior School will build on the progress 
made since federation in September 2009 and lead to a sustained improvement in 
educational standards at Key Stage 2.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



32. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT – INTER BLOCK TRANSFER 
 
32.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which 
sought approval for a transfer of funds between the blocks of the Dedicated Schools 
Grant.  
 
DECISION 
 
32.2 RESOLVED to approve the inter block transfer of funds within the Dedicated 
Schools Grant, as outlined in paragraph 3.1 of the report.  
 
Reasons 
 
32.3 Based on an estimated figure of 2,100 2 year old children, there will be a shortfall 
of £200,000 in funding between what East Sussex County Council pays and what the 
Council are funded for. The inter block transfer of funds will mitigate this shortfall.  
 
33.  ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE 2016/17 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
33.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which 
sought to determine the final admission arrangements for the 2016/17 school year. 
 
DECISION 
 
33.2 RESOLVED to agree the proposed admissions arrangements for the 2016/17 
school year following the statutory consultation period, which ran for the required eight 
weeks from 19 December 2014 to 27 February 2015 contained in: 

 Appendix 1 – The proposed admissions criteria;  

 Appendix 2 – The proposed admissions numbers;  

 Appendix 3 – The proposed co-ordinated admissions schemes, to include 
clarification on the procedure for parents who request their summer-born children 
start reception at the beginning of the academic year following their child’s birthday 
(i.e. the year after the normal year of entry).  

 
Reasons 
 
33.3 The County Council is required by law to carry out consultation on admissions 
arrangements.  There have been no comments on the proposed arrangements following 
the consultation.     
 
34. SEND JOINT COMMISSIONING STRATEGY 
 
34.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which 
sought approval of the SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy. The Lead Member for 
Children and Families fully endorses the Strategy.  
 
DECISION  
 
34.2 RESOLVED to agree the SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy. 
 
Reasons 
 
34.3 The Local Authority has a duty to implement joint commissioning arrangements 
with the NHS and this Strategy gives East Sussex County Council a clear focus for future 
joint commissioning intentions. 
 
  

Page 4



 

 

Agenda Item 
 
Committee:  Lead Members for Children’s Services 
 

Date:   20 April 2015 
 

Title of the report: Proposed Change of age range at four primary schools in East Sussex 
 

By:   Director of Children’s Services 
 

Purpose of Report:  To seek Lead Member approval to lower the age range at four primary 
schools to enable them to establish nursery provision for two to four 
year olds on their sites. 

 

Recommendation: 
The Lead Member is recommended to:  
 

1. with effect from 1 May 2015, approve lowering the age range at All Saints CE Primary 
School, East Hoathly CE Primary School and Polegate School from 4-11 to 2-11; and  

2. with effect from 1 September 2015, approve lowering the age range at St Paul’s CE Primary 
School from 4-11 to 2-11. 

 

 

1. Background: 
1.1 All children aged three and four are entitled to be funded for up to 15 hours free early 
education or childcare per week. In 2013/14 this offer was extended to approximately 20% of two 
year olds. From 2014/15 this entitlement is being rolled out to around 40% of two year olds. The 
eligibility criteria mean that the numbers receiving the two year old offer are likely to be skewed 
towards the more deprived areas of the county. 

 

1.2 The introduction and roll out of the two year old offer means that the numbers of children 
receiving funding for a free early education and childcare place is rising significantly. This 
increase is further fuelled by the recent rises in births in the county. The number of funded 
children is predicted to rise from 9,600 in 2013/14 to approximately 11,300 by 2017/18, an 
increase of around 19%. 

 

1.3 Information from the Department for Work and Pensions has been used to identify ‘hot spot’ 
areas for developing new early year’s places.  The areas of identified demand (Children’s Centre 
areas) include Sidley, St Leonards and Polegate.  Schools with the capacity to expand and offer 
additional places for 2 year olds were identified in each area and feasibility studies undertaken.  
All Saints CE Primary School (Sidley), St Paul’s CE Primary (St Leonard’s) and Polegate 
(Polegate) were identified as having capacity to expand.  A new modular building is being 
provided at All Saints at a cost of £267,379, St Paul’s will have an extension to its main building, 
costing £508,334 and £40,000 has been spent at Polegate to bring the former Children’s Centre 
into use as a nursery after it was de-designated by Lead Member on 10 September 2014 to 
deliver places for two to four year olds.  East Hoathly CE Primary School is not in an identified ‘hot 
spot’ area but is a school whose governing body wishes to lower its age range having taken over 
the management of the on-site nursery from 1 February 2015. 
 
2. Supporting information: 
2.1 On 9 February 2015, the Lead Members for Children’s Services approved the publication of 
statutory notices in relation to a proposal to lower the age range at each of the four schools to 
enable them to establish nursery provision for two to four year olds on their sites. 
 
2.2 The statutory notices were published on 20 February 2015.  The notices were posted on the 
entrances to each school and published in The Eastbourne Herald (Polegate), the Sussex 
Express (East Hoathly) and the Bexhill and Hastings Observer* (All Saints and St Paul’s).  The 
notices and full proposals were also posted on the Council’s website. 
 
 
* Due to a printing error the notices were published in the wrong edition of the Observer on 20 February 2015.  The 
notices were published in the correct edition on 27 February 2015. 

  Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

2.3 Publication of each notice was followed by a four-week period of representation, when 
comments or objections could be made to the Council.  At the end of the representation period, 
no comments or objections had been received. 
 
2.4 Prior to the publication of notices, each governing body undertook a period of consultation 
on a proposal to lower their age range from 4-11 to 2-11 to enable them to establish nursery 
provision for two to four year olds on their school sites.  The findings of each consultation are 
summarised below. 
 

 All Saints CE Primary School received no responses to their consultation. 

 East Hoathly CE Primary School received 22 responses, all of which supported the 
proposal. 

 Polegate School received 9 responses, all of which supported the proposal. 

 St Paul’s CE Primary School received 6 responses, of which 4 supported the proposal.  
The main concerns raised were around parking and the potential impact on one local 
Early Years provider. 

 
3. Factors to be considered by the decision maker and types of decision 
3.1 Proposed changes to the organisation of maintained schools have to follow a prescribed 
process established by the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2013.  The process set out above complies with these requirements. 
 
3.2 The regulations set out a number of factors which the Lead Members for Children’s 
Services should have regard to before making a final decision on the proposed changes.  These 
are set out in Appendix A. 
 
4. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 
4.1 In conclusion, lowering of the age range at the four primary schools will enable each school 
to establish early years provision for two to four year olds on their sites and enable the Council to 
meet its statutory requirement to ensure a sufficient supply of early years places in areas of 
identified demand. 
 
4.2 For this reason, the Lead Member is recommended to: 
 

 with effect from 1 May 2015, approve lowering the age range at All Saints CE Primary 
School, East Hoathly CE Primary School and Polegate School from 4-11 to 2-11; and 

 with effect from 1 September 2015, approve lowering the age range at St Paul’s CE Primary 
School from 4-11 to 2-11. 

 
 

 

STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services 
 
Contact Officer:  Fiona Wright, Assistant Director Education and ISEND 
 
Local Members:  Councillors Michael Ensor, Michael Phillips, Nick Bennett, Stephen Shing, 

Daniel Shing and Trevor Webb 

Page 6



 

 

APPENDIX A: In accordance with the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to 
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013, the Lead Members for Children’s 
Services should have regard to the following factors before reaching a final decision 
on proposed changes to maintained schools. 

 
1 Did the published notices 

comply with statutory 
requirements 

The notices complied with statutory requirements as set out in 3.1 of the 
report.  

2 Are the proposals related to 
other published proposals 

2.2 The proposals to lower the age range at All Saints Primary School, East 
Hoathly CE Primary School, St Paul’s CE Primary School and Polegate 
School are not related to other published proposals. 

3 Was consultation carried out 
prior to the publication of 
notices 

The Governing Body of each school undertook a period of consultation on 
a proposal to lower their age range from 4-11 to 2-11 to allow them to 
establish early years provision on their sites for two to four year olds.  The 
findings of each consultation are set out below.  
 

 All Saints CE Primary School, Bexhill.  The consultation period ran from 
17

th
 November, 2014 to 15

th
 December, 2014.  The school consulted 

with parents, staff, governors, and local nurseries. No responses were 
received 

 East Hoathly CE Primary School.  The consultation period ran from 6
th
 

October, 2014 to 10
th
 November, 2014.  The school consulted with 

parents, staff, governors, local nurseries, parent and toddler groups, 
local community.  In total, 22 responses were received, all of which 
supported the proposal.  No concerns were expressed 

 Polegate School.  The consultation period ran from 3
rd

 November, 2014 
to 1

st
 December, 2014.  The school consulted with families, governors, 

staff, local nurseries and pre-schools.  In total, 9 responses were 
received, all of which supported the proposal.  Polegate will begin 
accepting 2, 3 and 4 year olds from the middle of February 2015 as a 
pilot scheme ahead of a final decision on the formal proposal 

 St Paul’s CE Primary School, Hastings.  The consultation period ran 
from 3

rd
 November, 2014 to 1

st
 December, 2014.  The school consulted 

with governors, staff, families, local pre-schools and nurseries.  In total, 
6 responses were received, of which 4 supported the proposal.  The 
main concerns raised were around parking and the potential impact on 
one local Early Years provider 

4 Have any particular 
comments or objections been 
raised during the 
representation period which 
could directly affect the 
proposals 

No comments or objections were received during the representation period. 

5 The effect on education 
standards and diversity of 
provision 

The Council does not believe the creation of Early Years places at any of 

the schools will have a negative impact on other providers, schools and 

academies in the surrounding areas as existing Early Years provision within 

the area is predicted to be at capacity by the summer term of the 2014/15 

academic year.  The new provision will enable the Council to meet its 

statutory duty to provide Early Years places in each area and will help to 

meet the aspirations of parents, raise local standards and narrow 

attainment gaps. 

6 The demand for places Information from the Department for Work and Pensions has been used to 
identify ‘hot spot’ areas for developing new early year’s places.  The areas 
of identified demand (Children’s Centre areas) include Sidley, St Leonards 
and Polegate.  Schools with the capacity to expand and offer additional 
places for 2 year olds were identified in each area and feasibility studies 
undertaken.  All Saints CE Primary School (Sidley), St Paul’s CE Primary 
(St Leonard’s) and Polegate (Polegate) were identified as having capacity 
to expand.  A new modular building is being provided at All Saints, St Paul’s 
will have an extension to its main building and Polegate will use the former 
Children’s Centre on site after it was de-designated by Lead Member on 10 
September 2014 to deliver places for two to four year olds.  East Hoathly 

Page 7



 

 

CE Primary School is not in an identified ‘hot spot’ area but is a school 
whose governing body wishes to lower its age range having taken over the 
management of the on-site nursery on 1 February 2015. 

7 The impact on school size The proposals will not affect the size of any of the schools, which will 
remain at their current capacities. 

8 The proposed admission 
arrangements 

The proposals will not affect the admission arrangements of any of the 
schools, which will remain as published. 

9 National curriculum All four schools will deliver the Early Years Foundation Stage for children 
aged 2-5 years. 
 

10 Equal opportunities issues The Council does not believe that there are any sex, race or disability 
discrimination issues arising from the proposed changes.   
 
The proposals will have a positive impact by creating opportunities for 
children and families to access early years provision within their local area 
that meets their needs. 

11 Community cohesion The Council believes that the proposals will enhance community cohesion 
by enabling more local children and their families to access early years 
provision in areas of identified demand. 

12 The impact on travel and 
accessibility 

The proposals will not unreasonably extend journey times as places are 
being delivered in local areas to meet identified demand.   

13 Capital Capital investment is required at three of the four schools to create early 
year’s provision on site.  The costs of each project are: All Saints CE 
Primary School £267,379, St Paul’s CE Primary School £508,334 and 
Polegate £40,000.  Capital funding has been approved from the Expansion 
of EYEE Places to Eligible 2 Year Olds Capital Expansion Grant to deliver 
each project. 

14 School premises and playing 
fields 

The proposals will not affect the playing fields currently available at each 
school for physical education in accordance with the school premises 
regulations. 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Members on 9 March 2015
	4 Primary School age range changes - report by Director of Children's Services

